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there 1s a small ball is to put the thumb on it. On the top of the lamp on
the outside edge there is a deep cut around and beneath the top and on
the cuts there are holes, These holes were used to get the surplus oil from
the top to inside of the famp (see Fig. X - A ).

7.

12

13

14

I5

A pot of pottery with circular bass the top of the pot is lost. It is deco-
rated with ziqzag lines. The hight of it is 13 cm and its diameter 7.5 cm
The diameter of the bass in 4.5 cm. It was found in entrance which
connects the room 6.B. with 9.B. ( Sce Fig. X. B) .

. Three pots of the same size each one is in an half oval shape with a

wide open top. The bass is in  circulor shape. The hight is 5 cm. The
diameter is 16.5 cm. The diameter of the top is 14 em. The diameter
of the bass is 5.5 cim. It was found in the ruins which is outside the for-
tress. ( Sce big. X1) .

. A piece of ivory of a half oval shape decorated with crossed circules

mside each circule there is a hole. The diameter is 2 cm and the hight
is 4.25. 1t wes found in the ruins which is near to the spot I. A. ( Scc
Fig. XII)

Fight pottery pots with different shapes. 1t was found in the ruins which
is near 1o the spot 1. A. (See Figs. X111 - A.B.C. D.E. F. G. H) .

| A pot of pottery with a cylindrical shape. The bass of the pot is flat

with a wide open top. The hight of it is 10 cm and the diameter is 13
cm. It was found in the ruins near the spot I. A. ( See Fig. XIV ) .

A piece of white marble with o half oval shape on one of its sides there
is a plant decorations which is not clear on the other side which is {lat
and we can scc the remains of a circular bass . The diameter of the
marable 1s 5 cin and the hight is4 cm. The diameter of the bass is 2.5.
It was fouind in the ruins which was the indor wall. ( See Fig XV).
A pottery jar of a cylindrical shape. The top of it is lost. There arc two
groups of a circular lines on the body of the jar. Between these two
groups there is a third group of dccorations of arches. The bass is of
a carved shape. The hight of the jar is 39 cm. The diameter is 28 cm.
It was found in the ruins which is near the indor wall. ( See Fig. XV1)
A mosaic plat with a circular bass elazed with a decp red colour .
Inside the plat there is a Kufic Script. The plat is broken into pieces
and most of it is lost. It was found in room 7. A. ( See Fig XVII)

A fragment of their pottery the top of it is decorated with plant leaves
framed with lines and there are two birds between crossed leaves. The
length of it § cm and the breadth is 6 cm. It was found in the ruins near
the spot 1. A. (See Fig XVIlIl) .
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of Hall B. The others are found near spot 1 A. are the descriptions of some
of them .

a / the description of pottery lamps no. 10. The general shape 1s oval. It
has an edge in the middle. This edge covers half of the size of the lamp .
it has a dome cover with two openings. These openings are circular. The
front is to put oil besides there is a small hole to put the wick. The top is
decorated with lines and dots in relieve. These dots are around the oil ope-
ning. There is no handle for this lamp and the Jamp is colourfully glazed
(see Fig . VI) .

b / a lamp ne. 20. The length 9 cm, broadth 4 cm. Glazed from inside and
outside with red colour - this colour is still used in some pottery in Mosul
. The top of the lamp is curved and there is a liole for the wick and the
hole for putting oil. There is a handle for this lampwith a hole in the mid-
dle of the handle. see Fig. VII .

¢ / alamp without a number. Its length is 7,5 cm and its height 3 cm. Gla-
zed inside and outside with green colour. There is no handle for this lamp
.In the top there is a circular opening to hold oil and there is another open-
ing in the front of the lamp to put the wick. The shape of the lamp in gene-
eral is like a boat. In the sides of the lamp there are deep cut lines for the
the oil to go to the lamp inside later, by the wick opening. ( see Fig VIII)
when it overflows .

d / a long shape lamp with a natural size, its height is 6.5 cm. It has a han-
dle and a place for the wick to be put in, it is in good condition . The inside
and the outside of the lamp is glazed with a pale green colour to prevent
it from leaking. The top of the lamp is circular with a hole to hold the
the oil (see Fig Ixl) .

¢ / a mosaic lamp glazed inside and outside with a green colour. lts top
is decorated with holes. In the front of the lamp there is a big hole for the
wick and near the handie there is a hole for oil. We ncticed that therc are
many holes in the sides of the lamp as well as in the top these holes prob-
ably served as outlets for while it was lighted and probably they were
also for decoration. The edges of the top of the lamp arc broken and the
colour red of the clay appears and shows that this pottery is half baked .
This is usually used in making glazed pottery and to change them into
mosaic. After the mosaic is done they glaze it with green colour. This colo-
ur was usually used in Mosul and still is. This stuft is from copper acid
and, mixed with glaze. In the back of the handle of the lamp there is a

ribbon from clay itis used to put the finger through.At the top of the handle
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Its height 1s about 30 cm and its width about 2 m. The walls of the room
2 m. 75 height and the thickness of the walls is 1. 70 m.

The most important archaeological findings .

I . 2 pottery basins. There are some black ashes on them . Fach bass is
of cylindrical shape. From the top and from the bottom it has a circular
openiing and there is a bent in each circle. The height of each cylinder is
about 21 crm and the diameter is 9 . 5 cm while the opening of each side ,
has a diameter is 14 cm. It was found in the remains of spot 1 A . ( sse .
Fig.1).

2 . One pottery jar with one handle. On the opposite of the handle is a
place to get the water through and the neck of the jar and its top are orn-
amented with dark green colour. The height is 13. 5 cm the diameter is
7.5 cm while the top of the jar has a diameter of 3 cm. It was found in the
remains which are situated between the rooms 4 A - 7 A. ( see Fig . 2)
3 . A piece of rectangular marble decorated with vegetables and some
curves of flowers with leaves. The length 70 cm the width 35 cm., the thic-
kness 20 cm. It was found in the remains of the entrance which was ment-
ioned above and was found not in a normal position ; if must have been
moved from its original place. ( see Fig. 3) and plate 1V . 1

4. A bottle of thick pottery in a round shape with a sharp bass and a narrow
mouth . The mouth is circular . There are circular curvings on the
bottle. 'This was probably used as a bomb by putting phosphate. The hei-
ght is 12 cm and the diameter is 9 cm while the diameter of the mouth of
the bottle is 6 cm. It was found in the remains of the courtyard near the
south wall (see Fig. 1V ) .

5. A small jar from thin pottery and of round shape, its basin
is round while the top of the jar is lost . There is one handle on one stde
of the jar. The height is 8 cm. the diameter is about 6 cm while the
diameter of the mouth of the jar is 5 cm. This jar was found in the remains
of the second part of Hall B .

6 . A number of delicate pottery lamps. Each lamp consists of a flat bass
which stands on it, the main body of the lamp is of an oval shape. It has
two openings. One of them bigger than the other and most of these lamps
are of a deep green colour. The lamps are of different sizes. Some of them
are large, the length 9 cm and the height 7 cm. and the smallest is 3 ¢m
high 5.5 em long. These Jamps are found in the remains of the second part
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these two rooms were reconstructed in a height about 70 cm - 1. 10 m and
breadth about 1. 75 m* (see plate V1) .

7 The hall It isof a rectangular shape. ltslength is about 22 m and its bre-
adth about 5 mi. It is divided into three parts because of the two entrances
of the hall which was built in the middle of the hall in the late period. We
gave thesc three parts the symbols A. B. and C.

In the middle of part B there is an entrance going to the place 5.8 which
is situated in the westside of this part. The entrance of this place narrow
in the late pericd and two steps were built there. On the opposite of the
entrance there is another entrance which gees to the courtyard which is
situated in the east of the hall. The wall which is extended 1 the le ft corner
of the entrance to the south side finishes in a place where an oven was built
by the inhabitants. This oven was probably used to make piaster. An entr-
ance was lound also in the first part (A) which goes 1o the north stde There
is another entrance going to the west side of this part. The two cnirances
were closed lately. The team reconstructed the originzl wall of the hall
with a height of 1. 70 m - 2, 35 m and brea dith about 1. 65 m.

. The courtyard. It is of a rectangular shape. Its length is about 16. 5'm
aad ‘(s breadth about 9,5 m. Outside the court in the east there 1S an catr-
ance. Its breadth about 2, 20 m. Its east walls were remov ed in the late
period . In this scason , the wall which is mentioned was rebuilt with a
height of about 2, 90 m and the breadth about 2. 05 m. This court is joined
in room 10. B which is situvated in the north side and is linked to the court
with an entrance. This entrance was closcd in the late period . A wall wa
discovered in the court. lts breadth was about 3 m. in the nori west oi it
and this wall end in the entrance which is situated between the court and
the room mentioned above. It is probable that this wall was built in the
time when the eatrance which is mentioned about was closed to make a
new room in this place.

it was found in the left side of the entrance of the court in part B from
the hall a circular hole probably used as a septic tank. The team did 1ts
duty by reconstructing the original wall of the court with a height about
.70 m 2. 90 m and breadth about 1. 70 m.

9 . Room no. I B
This room is of rectangular shape. [ts breadth is about 3.50 m. The
around is covered with plaster and in the west side there is a stone bench.

47



3 . Room no. 7. A.

This room 1s in a rectangular shape. Its length is about7, 75 m and its
breadth about 4,85 m.lIt is joined to room no. 4.A with an entrance which
was ciosed in the late period. The outer wall was discovered by the team
Its breadth is about 2, 05 m. The team also discovered the foundation of
the wall part of which it was built with smooth marble in the outside of
the wall. The depth of the foundation of the wall is about 2. 50 m - 3. 50
m from the level of the earth. There is an entrance in the wall from the
outside which isin the south of the room.In the west of the room there are
two corners, these corners go to the orphanage building. The distance
is abeut 2 m. On the same side, there are two corners and in these two
corners there is a second entrance, In this season the team rebuilt the ori-
cinal walls of the room and also the north wall of the room.

M4. Pagell. Faredz.

4 . Room no. 9. A,

The length of the room is not disccvered yet because of the earth which
covers the west side of the room but tiie breadth of the room is about 4,50
m and it is joined to the room no. 8. A. with an entrance and it is also lin-
ked with the hall(C)which is situated in the north of it. The hallis joined-to
the room with an enwance. The room is also joired by anotherentrance
to the room 6. B. It was closed in the late period. In the north east corner
of’ the room and which extends to the west there is a stable for keeping
animals near to the two entrances of the room .

Two stands built of plaster and stones were used for columns which
were probably used to support the room. Therc is another circular mass
of marble with a rectangular hole in it used also to pui a column
in it to support the 1, 50 - 2, 50 m and breadth 2 m .

6 . Rooms no. 6.B - 9. B.

These two rooms are of rectangular shape. Their length aboutis9mand
their breadth about 4, 75 m. They are joined with an entrance, breadth
about 2 m and each of these rooms is joined tc room no. 9.A by an entrance
. This entrance was closed in the late period .

There is in the room no. 9 an entrance which is joined to place 5.B which
is situated in the north. We do not know yet the measurements of this place
. There 1s another entrance going to room no. 6.B and joining the place
(C) from the court which is situated in the east of the room. The walls of

44



third one was written ( You who read my book, weep about my youth)
. It is possible that these three pieces were used as epitaphs in the graveya-
rds which were removed from their oniginai place .

Preservation and reconstruction .

The team started in this season the task of preservation and reconstr-
uction of some of the original walls of the site by using plasters and stones
. These two materials were used to build the fortress in the Atabik period.

The team started first of all by building a wall separating the channel
which is given the number 3 A and the two places ( 1.A - 2.A ) . These
two places were not reconstructed because they were of a late. period but
we repaired the other wall which separates rooms ( 4.A - 6.A ) . Itis to be
noticed in this wall that it extends to the north direction which makes the
left corner of the court which is in the east while the west site of the wall
joins the south wall of room no. (4.A) . in the south east corner of the room
mentioned. This wall has the height of about 1.25 m - 2.90 m and in the
broadness of it 2.05 m.

1 . Room no. 4. A.

This room is of rectangular shape. Its length is about 6, 75 m, its broad-
ness about 4, 75 m and it is divided in the late period into two even rooms
joined to each other with a corridor, its breadth is about 2 m. The first
room is joined with room no. 6.A which is situated in the north directly.
It has an entrance which was closed in the late period. It is also linked
with the channel no. 3.A. In the east there was another entrance. This was
connected to room no. 7.A with an entrance which was closed in the late
periods. The team repaired all the original walls of the room. The height
of the walls which were built in this season is about I, 18 m the breadth
I, 70 m.

2 . Room no. 6. A.

Its length is about 4, 75 m breadth about 3, 50 m. It was built in the late
period. Its walls are very thin. In the middle of the room there is a thin
wall starting from the north of the room and reaches the left corner where
there is the entrance which joins the room to room no. 4. A. The team
rebuilt the walls of the room with the height of about 1. 50 m. The breadth
of the walls is about 1, 75 m. Their walls were also rebuilt by the team
which were related to the space which was discovered in this season. This
space is situated in the north west of the room which is mentioned above.
(see plate IT) .
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them is about 70 cm and the diameter is about 8 cm. A piece of sharp bone
was put in the middle of the hole and was probably used to torture some
of the prisoners. About 80 cm from the ground of the room, we found
the remains of another rocom. This room was probably built in the late
period. About the room which is in the east of the corridor, we discovered
in the north wall remains of a biind window. The distance of this window
from the south west corner is about I m, and the height of the window
from the ground of the room is about 45 cm, and its depth in the wall is
about 20 cm.

At the end of the season, the team started digging parallel to the indoor
wall in a place which is between the cemetery of Yahya about al gasim and
the basement.It wasdiscovered there a shapeless room of unequal measure-
ments and there was an added building on it specially to the walls, this
took place in the late period. The depth of this room is about 6 m
from the level of the carth and its foundation is covered with stones.
The room is connected with along corridor which goes to the south. we
have not discovered yet the end of the corridor. In the north of the room,
there is an entrance to the room .

On the east of the room, there are many walls linked to the wall of the
fortress ; these were probably not rooms or halls , they probably used
to support the fortress wall from failing .

In the outside of the wall of the fortress there was another wall which
was built in touch with the wall. This was done probably in the late per-
jods. We discovered this wall whose broadness is about 8 cm while the
original wall of the fortress is about of 2. 15 m.

In general it is to be noticed that the wall was buiit, during two periods.
Of the first period there is nothing left from the wall only a little part of
it while of the second period, the wall was built on the remains of the first

period adding on the wall some openings which are like towers for wat-
ching long distance .

The team also dug in the east and south of the site of the fortress. Noth-
ing was discovered there except three pieces of stones, on one of them were
written verses from the Qoran ( he who has the the heavens and what is
in earth who will . . ) and on the other one was written the verse ( He will
not forgive only by His permission He knows what is in your hands ) .
There was a drawing on this piece which looked like a lamp. While on the



the north part of the wall while in the south of the wall it was part of the
room (7.A ) . The distance between these two entrances is about 5,50 m.
The first was covered with tarmacadam. The depth of it is 1.70 m while
the breadth is about 2.30 m. The second was covered with plaster only.
It measures about 1,50 m in depth while is breadth is about 1,70 m. These
iwo entrances were closed by plaster and stones probabiy in the later per-
jods and were added to the main wall which has been mentioned.

Digeing also took place in the place B of the site and ¢specially par-
alle! to the ecast wall of the rooms ( 1.B - 2.8 - 3.B). We called this place
the ball and it was divided into three late periods and we gave them the

the symbols A. B, and C irom north to south In this place was also
discovered a big hole which is circular and itis atiached to the castern wall.
It is to be noticed that this hole is surrounded with stones in a depth of 30
cm, while the depth goes on without the stones, which proves that this was
a basin to get rid of the dirty water. About 2,50 m from this hole we found
a bigger hole which is beside the wall mentioned above but it is
situated in the south. The diameter of the hole to about 3.30m, the depth
of it is 2,50 m. 1In the botiom of it there were remains of black ashes. This
place was probably an oven for making plaster in the late periods.

The team also started digging in the south wall which separates the room
(I.B.)from room no. l. It seems that most of the stones were removed 1n
the late period and we discovered the remains of the plaster and the storncs
on the earth. The extension of this wall makes the corner of the entrance
of the court. The team removed all the stones in the Jeft entrance which
is mentioned above and which connects the well which separates the
channel (3.A) and the rooms (4.A - 6.A) .

The team also started digging in the north east of room no. i in which
they discovered two rooms In the middle of each room there was a stair
of four steps. It was noticed that on the gound of the room south of the
stairs. there were colums. They were probably to support the roof of the
room. But we could not continue digging in the north part of the room
because of the electric and telephone pillars. The stair which has been men-
tioned before was used to connect the first story of the building to the
second story. There was a corridor connected with the top of the stairs and

on each side of the corridor there was a Toom. In the ground of the west

room of the corridor we found two circular holes. The distance between
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the membership of NMushim Muhammad Ahmad, and with the team were
45 workers and four skilled workers and a builder.

Excavations .

The team started its digging in two places ( 1.A - 2.A ). They found the
remains of a channel which 15 parallel to the first channel which was found
in the first season. It is noticed that this channel was the place to collect
the water from the roofs. It is usual that the roof has tubes of clay which
come down from the roof to the channel . The channel ends usually in
another channel \hich reaches the septic tanks. [t is probable that this
channel and the wall were buili in the late periods because the walls were
not connected with the original waly which separates the first channel and
the two places ( 1.A - a.A. ). In addition the foundations which are under
walls are built from clay and arc of black colour.

The team started also to dig in the place ( 5.A ) and it was discovered
that there were walls not very thick and they were not organized in their
direction. they were probably built temporarily in the late, period.

The team recounsiructed the north wall to the rooms ( 8.A-6.A ) and
they revealed the separation between the ancient wall, of which the breadth
is 1,65 m and the cther wall which was built in the north side with a breadth
of 70 cm probably in ilic late periods. it is worth mentioning here that we
discovered a space in the north corner near to the room ( 6.A ) . This space
was closed in the late period by plaster and stones and was added to the
wall mentioned above. 1In this cmptiness. there were remains of tarma-
cadam on the walls. This was probably used to kecp grains.

The team startad digging in the outer door wall which was situated south
of wall and to know its foundation. The team was able to discover the
breadth of the wall and to know its foundation. The 1team was able to
discover the foundation which part of it was built of smooth marble from
the outside and the breadth of this wall is about 2,05 m. It was dis-
covered also an entrance to tire wall which zoes to the room ( 7.A ) to the
outdoor ( south ). This wall extends to the west till it reaches the orphanage
at the present time.

The team, discovered the original walls which surround the rooms (4.A-
6.A -7.A -8.A-9.A) they also discovered that there were two entrances
to the middle wall which formed part of the rooms (8.A - 9.Z). This is in
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period but the place of their issue and the time and the name of the 1ssue
are unknowi.

2. Findings of fragments of glazed pottery and some coloured glasses.

3. Findings no. 9 in spot A, a piece of marble whose length is 26 cm and
broadness 22 c¢m, ornamented with plant decorations.

4. Findings of a flat plate of clay. The face of 1t is S0cm while its back is
8 cnmi. The depth of it is 5 cim. its thickness is 1 cm. ( See no 7).

5. The team found in no. 9 from the spot A, a piece of marble with in-
scriptions. Its length is 43 cm and its breadth 30 cm. The script is framed
with plant decoration. Its breadth is 12 cm. The marble is surrounded
from top to bottom with various decorations. ( See form no. 2) . It
js written on it”” What is on the earth . . . .
1t is probably a marble from a part of a big piece, which many verses
of the Quran were written . [t is used to decorate the place.

6. 1t was found in no. 9 from the spot A, bracelets and necklaces and
jewcelry, ( some are ) black and ( some are ) green.

7. Many lamps , were found, some in perfect condition and some in dif-
ferent shapes and sizes. All of them are decorated with plant decor-
ations .

8. There was found a valuable ring, joint with it , was a piece of bronze.

9. An Ottoman bayonet was found in no. 9 from the spot A in the upper
layer and in the place whose height is about 96 cm above the earth.
1t is in a very bad condition and is rusted. Its hand was broken from
one side of it . The place which joins the rifle was also in very bad
condition probably because of dampness.

10 The most important, thing that the team found in different parts
of the site were fragments of jars and plates of different sizes and shapes
They are decorated by the method of ceramic ( barbotine ) 2. The
decorations are of different style and different pictures. Some are of
plants others human or animal pictures. Among these decorations
there are two pictures of girls with two plaits reaching the waist, car-
rying in their hands a stick and in their belts a big knife and beside a
lion of which the face and the front legs appear.

The second season

The team of excavation started its work in the site of Bash Tabiya for
the second seasonin the 6th March 1971 headed by Dr. Talat al Yawer and
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them, only one wall which is of a small height. As we said we found a new
building which was built in the late period. It is of a low height like the
height of a bench. Inside this building there is a pool which was built with
plaster and stones supported in the north by marble. Also we found
in the east of the building a long stable situated in the length of a wall . It
was for sheep that is why we could stress what we say that this place was
a stable, and a place for slaughtering animals. The measurements of this

stable are as follow :

ILength 46 cm

depth 13 cm
breadth from inside 45 cm breadth from outside 56 cm while the middle
building is of 52 cm of depth, the length 3,3C m, the 2,29 m the length 95
cm.

About the room no. 9 from the place A and the placc B, it was joined
directly with another room. It was given the number 3. The room was
numbered from the east directly that means from the direction of the Tigris
River. The room which 1s mentioned is rectangular also its length 1510,90m
and its breadth 5m. between its north walls a there is a door, its breadth
is 2m. It joined directly with the back wall on which had fallen a big mass
of the building of the fortress. It weighs about tens of tones. It was re-
moved by the team to save the other walls from falling.

This room is also joined with another room. It is of a rectogular shape
the back of the room had been closed by a second wall but it was removed
after the fortress was ruined. The inhabitants of Mosul used the remains
of this building to build their houses.

The length of this room is 6,10 m the breadth 4,80 m. In its north wall
there is a door, its breadth is 2m. which was joined with the court at the
back of the room, mentioned before. In the east of the room there is an-
other door, its broadness is 2,55m, its is joined directly to the room no. 1
which is of a rectangular shape. The breadth of it is 3,50 m its length
4,40 m. This room is a passage under the north wall of the fortress which
1s facing the Tigris river directly and was joined with a long passage going
directly to the shore of the river.

Archaeological findings.

1. The discovery of many bronze coins which were very rusted; they were
cleaned and are now in the museum. Some of them are still of unknown
origin because they are worn out. They are probably of the Atabik
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of the fortress.

Beside room no. 4 a and at the east duection, we found room no. 6 A
which was jotned with a corridor with no. 4. This room was of rectangular
shape. Its length was 5.20 m  and its  breadth was 3.60 m and the
entrance of the room its breadth was 1.60 m while the breadth of the wall
was less from the first wall about 10 cm ., i.c. 1,20 m.

In the north of these two rocoms there were other two rooms numbered
R67. A They were not linked 1n the south with the two previous rooms but
they were linked in the north with another room. They were also of a
rectangular shape but the wall which divided them  was very thick, the
breadth of it was 2,20 m.

Room no. 7.A Its length was 8m, 1ts breadth was 5,20 m.

About room no. ¥ 1t was joimed with the room in the north which was
given the number 9.A It was also of a rectangular shape.Only its breadth
was measured wiich about 4,80 mi, but its lenath could not be discovered
because part of the room is in the orphanage building. This room is in the
north-west.

The most important archaeological findings which were discovered in
this site were in the kitchen. The kitchen was of a large size. It was part
of the appartment which was linked to the military fortress which con-
firms that the inhabitants of this fortress were soldiers and of great number.

We discovered during our excavation that the rooms and the corridors
septic tanks were all in the north west of the fortress and its foundations
were at the level ofthe foundations of the original building. This makes i1t
casy to get rid of the dirty waters which ran in the south of the kitchen.
These inhabited appartments were joined with cerridors,their breadths
are equal, they are without roofs and have remained like that for different
periods. Some of these corridors werc covered with roofs i the later
decades.

The team found in these rooms places to keep animals ready to be killed
for the inhabitants of the fortress. A stable in the south of room no. 7
was found also. It was of a small depth and it was ruined because of the
years. It was also found in the middle of no. 8 abench which slopes
to a small basin. This was a place to slaughter animals. Beneath the basin
there were remains of blood which has become black ( See form 11).

To clarify the place from different peoints, the team joined no.7.8.9 of
the plac= B with other numbers. It seems that there is no wali separating
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The first week of the excavation was the week of discovering the added
walls on the original walls. the heights of the walls werc short and of med-
ium thickness and they were stuck on the two walls mentioned above
But after the cover from the wall, a new sheet of wall was seen. This
wall was also covered with tarmacadam. It was built as a bath with lavat-
tories for the inhabitants. To this we gave no. (1). The two sides of this
place were built with bricks and stones and it was covered with tarmacadam
The roof was built with stones and covered with tarmacadam .

About no. (2) which is situated directly on the Tigris River, the added
walls were directed towards the North and its depth reached the bed of
the dirty waters.From it there is a branch which goes directly to the river.
The cover was removed. We found only two edges of the wall. The levels
of these walls were at the same level of the earth. The breadth was 1,50
m. It was found in store no. (3) , many potteries, stones, grains and mud
accumulated for ages. The number division which the site was divided
into and number, was of a great usc we would not confuse the discovered
rooms and the things which were found in it. It made it easy for us to know
the remains of each room. ( See maps 224) .

We started reconstructing the rooms and the corridors from down to
up, from no.4A which was of rectangular shape and was divided into two
between it a corridor. The length of the first part was 2, 65 m and the second
3, 40 m. The breadth of the room was 5, 20 m and the thickness
of its walls was 1, 75 m from the north while the thickness of the south
wall of the room was 1, 90 m. The thickness of the wall of the corridor
was less than the thickness of the two walls which were beside It was about
1, 30 m. It was discovered on two ruined ovens for making bread .
The team took the plotos and the measurements of the ovens. The diameter
of the mouth of the ovens was about 46 cm. The ovens were full

of ashes and stones. They were cleaned after the foundations of the ovens
were discovered .

About no.(A) which was a corridor separating the septic tanks and the
bath and situated between the north Kitchens. The heights of this corridor
were less than the ojher building in the fortress. The team tried to discover
the original layere which rested on mountains. ( It is believed that the for-
tress was built on the mountain ) . The team removed the earth and found
verv kFard yellow stones . These hard stoses were built on by the inhabitants



Bash Tabiya
First Season

The University of Mosul appointed in the 12th June 1969 a team for
excavation headed by Dr. Talat al - Yauer with Abd al - Wahid ar - Ram-
adani as supervisor on the excavation team which took place in the Islamic
Archacological site of Bash Tabiya in Mosul. The team consisted also of
Muwafag Ahmad as civil enginecr and representative from the General
Directorship of Antiquity. Five skilled workers from Shirkat known for
their previous work with excation teams in Nineveh helped the excavation
team : while the unskilled workers who joined the team were over fifty
who worked constantly during the first secason of excavation , which lasted
over four months .

The task given to the team was to discover from the ruins of the fortress
of Bash Tabiya what was unknown , hidden and unrevealed. Therefore
the team started its task by making a careful survey of the fortress
and the mounds around it. The survey covered also the iands which surr-
ound the fortress. The tecam aiso took photos of the site from its different
sides and specially the remains of the ruined tower of the fortress and the
remains of its extension towards the nerth-west; besides the team took the

photos of the fallen walls and roofs and the indoor corridors and the wall
which surrounds the fortress .

The team chose the system of alphebetical order naming the buildings
of the fortress and also giving a number to each building which was going
(0 be excavated. By this way the team would make the task easy and better
organized to get exact historical information about the site and would
avoid confusion with the archaeological findings in different ports of the
>uilding .

The digging started between two standing walls which were
sartly ruined. These walls were extended to the south. The team foll-
>wed this extension in opposite directions { east and west ) . In this way
he team would know the extension of the two walls. Moreover the team
vould know the late period which were sticked on the original walls which
vere built from plaster and stones. The foundations of the walls were cov-
-red with tarmacadam to stop dampness from penetrating the walls, which
iappens usually because of the water used by the inhabitants of the for-
ress . ( see plates II . IIl . )
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walls and towers when the army of Tahmasib retreated. In the year 1236-
1830 Ahmad al-jalili reconstructed the fortress of BashTabya. After this
date we knov nothing about reconstructing the fortress because it was
rulned and nothing was {eft except part of its tower and its wall. At the
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present time the University took the task to reconstruct the building.
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was built to accommodate thousands of
soldiers. It has stores for munitiors and weapons. This is mentioned by
Ibn al-Athir when he spoke about Chawli in the year 502-1108. Chawli
left the city leaving his w-fe arad his son Yusiq. In the city hived a thousand
and five hundred Turkish horsemen and other soldiers: 1

One of those peopic who were interested in building the {ortress and
strengthening its towers afier it was ruined, wes Fakr 2l-Din b. Abd-al-
Masth, the miister of Sayf al-Din Ghazi who took his viziership in 566-

1170 . 2

The city was visited bv !.i;‘"t. Jubayr, the Andalousian, n the year 579-
1183, He described the city by savinog “‘in the top of the city there was a
gicat foriress built firmly, arcund the fortress there was an ancient wall

J

with towers and there were houses Uelonging to the sultan and there was
a strezt separating the city from the forJess.” 3

-

This fortress extends from RBash Tabiya in the North to the tomb of
Yarva b (Tanvm, to the souih and from there to the ruins of the graveyard
ai-Maqib in the cast. and from these ruins it goces o the north to the street
which goss t th Hosmtai . H ends in the western wall west of the gate
of zuriya. ['s dimension i3 abo 300m?2.

the appartinents of the fortress has
Il |
fth

t 63
[t 1s regretted that nothing about
s of the gates of the fortress. They are

reached uvs, but we know the na

3
s
oy
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2la which gees t¢ the square cf the city in the west.
ab al-Sir which goes to the river. \ /hen Salah al-Din Ayubid came to
Mosul in 578-1182, Mujahid al-IDin b. Gimaz went out for some nights
from the gate of al-Sir carrying torches with them, chasing the army
of Salah ai-Diin .
1. Ibn ai-Athir, al-Kamil /7 al-Tarikh, X,172.
2. E‘oid op., Cit., Xi, 134.
S , Rilla, p 188.
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rounded the city fortress taken by Basasiri who pulled down the fortress.4

This secret gate i1s very important and one of the strongest gate of the
fortress. 1n the year 566-1170, when Nur al-Din Zingi surrounded the city
of Mosul* he swore that he would never enter the city by the secret door
to defeat the rebel Abd gl-Masih Fakhr al-Din who oppressed his nephew
Ghaz1 . |

The fortress is connected with Qara Saray. It was called before the house
of al-Hilka or the houses of Saray. These houses were built by Imad al-
Din Zinki. They were situated on the Tigris river and it is said by Ibn Ju-
bayr that these houses were separated from the top till the bottom with a
large street. This street was built by the Uqaylids. 2

In addition to that the foriress was a headquarter of the army and it was
a prison for the outlaws. In this prison lived Qutb al-Din Mawdud who
was previously governor of Mosul in 558-1162 and, his minister al-Jawas
al--Isfahani . 4

It is mentioned also that in this prison lived lzz al-Din Masud, governor
of Mosul in 559-1162, and his minister Mujahid al-Din Qimaz. 5

The fortress remained in good condition till the year 660-1261, when it
was surrounded by Sindraghwa. In that year it was reconquered and it
was pulled down . 6

The rest of the fortress was demolished by the Turkish invader Taymur
Leng who came to Mosul in 796-1393 . 7

After this period the city of Mosul was taken by the Ottmanids and the
governor of the city Bakr Basha b. Ismail ordered to build a wall for the
the city in the year 1035-1625 . 8

It should be mentioned that the fortress was taken as a headquarter
by Husayn Basha al-Jalili and he took care of the fortress by rebuilding its

4. Al-Daywachi, op cit, p 119. 1bn Kuthayr a/-Bidaya wa al-nihaya fi al-Tarikh, Cairo,
1351 AH, 1932 A.D. IHIX* p234. 1bn al-Futi, al-Hawadith al-Jamia wa al-Tajarib
al-nafi a , ed Mustafa Jawad, Baghdad, 1351-1932, pp 346-347.

. Ibn al-Athir, al-Kamil, 1X, 198. 1bid, Loc., cir., X, 147.

. Ibn Jubyr, Rihla, p 188

. Ibn Khallikan, II, 72,

. Ibn al-Athir, IX, 46 .

. al-Hawadith al-Jami a, p 346-347; Dhahabi, 1, 188; Ibn Kuthayr, al-Bidaya wa al-
nthaya, TIIX, 234; Ibn al-Ibri, p 294-295 .

. Ibn Alarb Shah AJa ib, al-Qudur Fi Akhbar Tavnur Leng, 188-47;

. Al-Ummari, Yasin, K. al-Udaba, Manus .

8. Ibid, op., cit, loc. cit.
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THE FORTRESS OF BASH - TABIYA
T. R. Yawer (Ph.D.)

Historical background.

The fortress is situated in the city of Mosul on the westside of the Tigris
river, built on a hill near to the bank of the river. The founder of the for-
tress is unknown and the time in which it was built is also unknown. But
‘rom the references we have. mention is madc that the wall of Mosul is
known in the periods following : In the time of the Umayyad it is said
that Marwan B. Muhammad was the one who made it as a city with a
diwan and he built a bridge connecting both sides of the city and he also
built a wall for the city. In the time of the Abbasid period, the caliph al-
Abbas appointed Yahya b. Muhammad instead of Muhammad b. Sul.
The new governor looted the city and killed thousands of citizens and pul-
led down the wall of the city. 1t is said also that the city revolted against
the caliph al-Rashid, this capliph is said to have pulled down also the wall
of the city. 1

At the time of the Uqaylid, it is said that the miribn Qurmis built a new
wall and its remains can still be seen at the present time. 2 While at the
time of the Atabiks, mention is made that Sayf al-Din b. Mawdud re-
erected the wall of the city, in the year 564 AH. It is said also that the
founder of the Atabik dynasty was the first to re-erect the wall of the city
and that ibn Mawdud rebuilt the wall of the fortress and strengthened its
towers. 3 When the great Mongol invasion came from the east, Mosul
was a target, the city was looted and the walls pulled down in the year
660 A.H.

Reference is made that the fortress of Bash-Tabiya is mentioned in the
Vth century after Higra in the year 450 AH 1085 AD. A fight broke out
between Ibrahim b. Yanal and al-Basasiri . 1t is said that al-Basasiri sur-

I' Yaqut al-Hamawi, My Jam al-Buldan Leibzig, 1286-1869, 11, 196; Al-Uzdi, 1Qd al-
Jumman, Munus. No. 1584; ( Tarikh al-Mawsil ) ed. Dr. Ali Habiba, Cairo 1387-

1967, U, 25; Abu al-Fida, a/~-Mukhtasar Ji Akhbar al-Bashar, Istanbul, 1286 H, 11,
pl6; Al-Buladhuri, Furnh al-Buldan, Cairo (1957 ) 11, p40s.

2. Al-Ma’adidi, Kh., Dawlat Bani Ugayl fi al-Ma:vsil, Baghdad, 1968, pl64;

3. Al-Magqdisi, Abu Shama, al~-Rawdatayn Fi Akhbar al-Dawlatayn Nuriya wa al-Salahiya
Cairo 1287, 1, 43; Ahmad al-Sufi, Khntat ar-Mawsil, Mosul, 1953, 12-13,
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